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Responses to Questions on the Notice of Funding Opportunity 

1. To what extent must organizations provide specific CVs for key personnel in their
proposals?

Under “Organizational Capacity and Staffing”, the guidance states that the applicant must 
submit a CV for the Chief of Party or Country Director but that CVs for other key 
personnel (e.g., for Monitoring and Evaluation, Finance) are not required as part of the 
proposal submission.  The organizational chart must however include the following key 
personnel positions: Chief of Party/Country Director, Monitoring and Evaluation 
Specialist, and Finance Director. 

2. Is a cost-share arrangement required or recommended?

While cost sharing is not required, it is encouraged to maximize program impacts and 
make progress towards achieving in-country sustainability.  Applicants must identify and 
explain any cost sharing in the budget narrative.  Applicants must document any non-
Commodity Credit Corporation (CCC) cash or non-cash contributions accordingly on the 
Standard Form 424 (SF-424) with their proposal submission, as per 7 CFR 1599.4(d) (7). 
If an award is made, the applicant will be responsible for providing these resources. 
These resources will not be borne by CCC funding.   

3. Are both Food for Education and Food for Progress award solicitations due on January
19th or January 24th 2017?  The solicitation synopses differ from the actual solicitation.

The grants.gov synopses of the funding opportunities display both an original closing 
date and a current closing date. Please follow the current closing date of “Jan 19, 2017.”  
This date applies to both Food for Education and Food for Progress solicitations. 

4. Per FFE solicitation, Part III – Eligibility Criteria on p.9 of the RFA states: “In accordance
with the McGovern-Dole Regulations (7 CFR 1599.3), a private voluntary organization, a
cooperative, or another organization that is not an intergovernmental organization is
eligible to submit an application to become a recipient under McGovern-Dole.” Are UN
agencies considered “intergovernmental organizations,” and therefore not eligible to
apply under this opportunity?

UN agencies are considered intergovernmental organizations.  The solicitation is being 
amended to be consistent with the statute for the McGovern-Dole program, which allows 
intergovernmental organizations to participate in McGovern-Dole solicitations.   

5. On page three of the notice it says that FAS “anticipates awards ranging from $20-30
million” (for five year durations), but then says that the “award figures reflect the total
amount of the award, while the operating budgets for proposed cooperative agreements
should be based on the anticipated monetization proceeds and any administrative funds
requested by the recipient.”   Hypothetically, if an applicant submitted a budget grand total
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of $25 million comprising $22.5 million in estimated proceeds and $2.5 million in 
administrative costs would this be considered within the $20–$30 million range?   Or, 
does the $20–$30 range cover only USDA’s costs for (both) purchase of commodities and 
ocean freight?   

The $20–$30 million range includes all costs—commodities, ocean freight, and any CCC 
funds awarded for administrative costs—not just the operating budget. 

6. What is the overall cap for administrative costs in the FY 2017 Food for Progress
solicitation?

FAS estimates that approximately $10 million will be available for administrative funds 
under the Food for Progress awards.  
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7. In terms of experience working in a particular country, our organization has no direct
experience although we are putting forward individual staff members and an in-country
organization (sub-recipient) with experience.  How will USDA evaluate our eligibility to
apply and can you provide a justification?

In the proposal under “Organizational Capacity and Staffing”, the applicant should 
describe their experience implementing similar projects and the experience of its staff.  In 
addition, the applicant should address the experience of subrecipients who will be 
implementing the project.  In the scoring process used to evaluate applications, USDA 
will consider the in-country experience of the prime applicant, relevant experience in 
other countries, and also factor in the experience of subrecipient partners.  Please refer to 
the guidance in the Notice of Funding Opportunity (NoFO), pages 12–13. 

8. Is a public/state-controlled institute of higher education eligible to apply?

According to General Counsel, public and private universities are eligible to apply for 
McGovern Dole funding.   

9. Our organization is interested in providing overarching technical assistance for all the
programs that are awarded through “knowledge management strategies” that support
the development of a strong community of practice.  Does the NOFO support this type of
assistance?

The purpose of funding for the McGovern Dole Program is found on page 4 of the NoFO.  
Proposals which outline solutions to these issues will score higher during the review 
process.  Proposals with the highest review scores are then funded.   

10. How will USDA evaluate applications for programs in countries that are not on the list of
“priority countries and regions”?

Applicants are welcome to submit a proposal for countries outside the list of “priority 
countries and regions”, along with a justification for the need for such a program in 
accordance with guidance in the NoFO.  However, the competition for funding is strong 
and because of budget constraints, USDA funds approximately only 25 percent of the 
proposals received.   

In developing a list of priority countries and regions for a fiscal year, USDA aligns with 
its strategic plan and uses input from U.S. embassies.  USDA also takes into 
consideration synergies with other U.S. government programs underway in countries and 
regions, and seeks to reduce duplication of effort.     

5. Could USDA clarify what is different in the McGovern-Dole Strategic Objective 2, as the
Results Framework does not appear to have changed from previous years?

USDA added the word “nutrition” in the title of Strategic Objective 2.  USDA has 
enhanced guidance to emphasize the importance of providing nutritious meals. When 
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proposals are being evaluated a full five percent of the final score is allocated to the 
section on nutrition. 

11. What exactly is meant by “Local Capacity Building” in the Strategic Analysis section of the
NoFO (page 11)? Is USDA seeking information on capacity building of indigenous
institutions, local communities and governments (similar to “Organizational Capacity and
Staffing” (page 12)?

Local Capacity Building must be distinguished from Organizational Capacity and 
Staffing.  Organizational Capacity and Staffing refers to the applicant’s own 
organizational capacity and staffing plan.  Local Capacity Building refers to building the 
capacity of local institutions to carry forward the school feeding program after USDA 
resources are withdrawn. 

12. If only two Past Performance Reports (PPR) are allowed per application, should one of
them be for a literacy/education-focused sub-recipient?  (It would seem to follow given
that the NoFO page 17 states, “If the education and literacy activity is conducted by a sub-
contractor or subrecipient, submission of the sub-contractor or subrecipient’s relevant
past performance is strongly encouraged.”

The applicant must decide how to demonstrate evidence of strong experience.  There is 
no further guidance on what kinds of PPRs are required.    

13. Given that there are no explicit sections on security concerns in the proposal, could USDA
please provide some guidance as to what information it would like to see included in risk
mitigation and organizational operation plans?

The applicant should provide information on how the project team will be able to address 
cases of theft, losses, security, and other cases of likely disruptions in the project.  

14. Is monetization is a requirement for eligibility?  Can applicants submit an
application/proposal without considering monetization?

Monetization is not a requirement for the McGovern-Dole program. 

15. Is the estimated award size on page 9 of the NoFO inclusive of the value of commodity
and/or ocean freight costs?

Yes that is correct. 
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16. Will USDA make a calculator available for applicants to estimate the costs of commodity
and ocean shipping when preparing their program budgets?

No formal calculator is provided. However, applicants are welcome to seek commodity 
pricing estimates from USDA Food Aid Division’s Transportation and Logistics Branch 
when assembling proposal budgets. (E-mail: ppded@fas.usda.gov) 

17. The NoFO guidelines (pp 49) indicates “Targeted Areas: Southern Region” of Islamic
Republic of Mauritania. Also, “In 2012, southern Mauritania witnessed an influx of
refugees fleeing the conflict in northern Mali.” Based on this description, we would like to
confirm our understanding that you mean the geographical area located in the southern
part of Mauritania along its borders with Senegal and Mali. The area that has been
affected by the influx of Malian refugees is Hodh ech-Chargui region (below the 18° north
latitude).

Your understanding is correct. 

18. When proposing a multi-year program should a separate budget for each year be included
(in other words, three budgets for a 3-year program)? If three budgets are to be included,
should there be a budget narrative for each yearly budget?

A separate budget is not necessary for each year.  Instructions regarding the proposed 
budget can be located on page 9 of the Food for Progress NoFO and on page 18 of the 
McGovern Dole NoFO.  Additional guidance is located in Appendix G of both NoFOs 
and example of a budget narrative is posted on the FAIS web page 
(https://apps.fas.usda.gov/fais/public ).  

19. Part III – Eligibility Criteria on page 9 of the NoFO states: “In accordance with the
McGovern-Dole Regulations (7 CFR 1599.3), a private voluntary organization, a
cooperative, or another organization that is not an intergovernmental organization is
eligible to submit an application to become a recipient under McGovern-Dole.” Are UN
agencies considered “intergovernmental organizations,” and therefore not eligible to
apply under this opportunity?

UN agencies are considered intergovernmental organizations and are eligible for funding 
under the solicitation. 

20. With the increased focus on nutrition in McGovern-Dole, can organizations include ready
to eat foods in their proposals?

At this time, no. We can only call forward commodities which are on our officially 
approved list. The official list of commodities is developed with input from numerous 
food technologists and other experts who assess which meet the nutrition requirements of 
our program. (The list is found in the slideshow from the 2nd December stakeholders 
meeting.) 

mailto:ppded@fas.usda.gov
https://apps.fas.usda.gov/fais/public
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21. Can our proposals also include nutritionally rich foodstuffs such as orange-fleshed sweet 

potatoes, which are locally sourced? 
 
Funding under McGovern-Dole can be used only to purchase US commodities.  Some 
existing programs do include activities involving local food commodities (e.g. 
supplemental school gardens), and we recognize the added value of such activities. An 
applicant needs to be mindful when describing such activities in their proposals that these 
additional locally-sourced foods need to be tracked and their impacts need to be 
monitored closely. 

 
22. Is there a preferred template that USDA would like applicants to use for PPRs?  

 
 Yes.  A blank PPR has been posted to the FAIS Web site 

(https://apps.fas.usda.gov/fais/public ).  Send the blank PPR (MS Word document) to the 
reference to be completed. 

 
23. For consortiums of organizations submitting an application together, does the allowable 

number of PPRs apply to the whole consortium or to each consortium member?    
  
 Submit PPRs only for the prime organization.  The PPR requirement refers to the 

applicant, the main recipient of funding. The limit of three PPRs references the main 
applicant’s past work, not subrecipients’ past work. 

 
24. Please confirm that there is no page limit on the introduction and strategic analysis 

sections.   
 
 The introduction should be limited to one paragraph. The strategic analysis has no 

specified page limit. It must address the requirements as stated in the NoFO.   
 
25. Page 9, Part IV B, 6. PVO Budget section of the NoFO states that a detailed budget is not 

required.  On page 93, the list of required attachments includes mention of a detailed 
budget. Can USDA clarify if a detailed budget is required as part of the proposal?    
 
 Applicants are required to upload a budget summary and budget narrative as part of their 

proposal.  The requirements for the detailed budget in FAIS have been greatly reduced.   
 

26. We kindly request USDA provide FSN pay scale for Sri Lanka.  
 
Salaries for local and international staff are primarily dictated by PVOs’ internal human 
resources policies. If additional requirements exist in the respective country, it is 
incumbent on the implementing organization’s to apply local law. 

 

https://apps.fas.usda.gov/fais/public
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27. On page 2 of the NoFO, the “estate sector” is listed as a region in Sri Lanka. Please clarify 
the geographical scope of this region and which districts are included.   
 

The “Estate Sector” includes plantations that are more than 20 acres in size and have 10 
or more residential employees, as defined by the Sri Lankan Department of Census and 
Statistics. Sabaragamuwa, Central, and Uva provinces have relatively high shares of the 
country’s Estate Sector population.  Applicants should include justification for selected 
provinces in their strategic analysis. 

 
28. The only page limit listed in the NoFO appears to be for the evaluation plan (10 pages). 

Are there any page limits for the attachments? 
 

The evaluation plan is the only item in the attachments that has a page restriction.  
However, there is a 5,000 character limit on each text section in FAIS in the “Special 
Needs & Distribution Methods” section.    
 

29. On page 6, the NoFO states Project-Level Results Frameworks should “identify critical 
assumptions.”  Does this mean that our critical assumptions must be displayed within the 
results framework graphic (there isn’t enough space because activities have to be placed 
in the results framework as well), or can the critical assumptions be discussed in the 
strategic analysis? 

 
Please include your critical assumptions in the results framework document, perhaps on a 
second page to leave space for the graphic and associated activities on the first page.  
Critical assumptions will be considered alongside the results framework, so describing 
them in any other section is not recommended. 
 

30. Why is Olancho included twice in the context of Dry Beans?  Did you mean to include 
another department? 

 
Olancho was mistakenly added twice in the list of priority sectors, so consider that a typo. 
 

31. La Paz Department is mentioned in the proposal as prioritized by USDA but was not 
included in the table of priority regions for Food for Progress FY2017 funds.  Does USDA 
intend to fund coffee, beans and/or horticulture in La Paz during this cycle? 
 

La Paz is not considered a priority region for the targeted value chains in Honduras in the 
FY2017 Food for Progress NoFO.  The department of La Paz was identified as a Feed the 
Future priority region and included as a reference only.  
 

32. Please confirm the due date (there have been two proposed dates). 
 
January 19, 2017 at 5 pm EST.  
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33. Does horticulture includes perennial tree fruits?  
 
Yes, the priority sector area of horticulture includes perennial tree fruits. 
 

34. On page 52 of the NoFO, under the Sri Lanka country guidance, the guidance states 
"Proposals should target Northern and Eastern Sri Lanka and may also focus on the Estate 
Sector and Monaragala District."  Please clarify if "Northern and Eastern Sri Lanka" refers 
to “Northern Province” and “Eastern Province” or generally the Northern and Eastern 
provinces (e.g. Northern, North Central, and North Western in the North). 
 

The Sri Lanka guidance language “Northern and Eastern Sri Lanka” refers to provinces 
in the north and east generally. 

 
35. Regarding the FY2017 budget, are applicants able to split specific line item costs between 

both Administration and Activities in the budget narrative? 
 
Yes, USDA has provided a budget narrative example on the FAIS Web site to illustrate 
how this may be done (https://apps.fas.usda.gov/fais/public.) Please also refer to the 
detailed guidance in the NoFO. 

 
36. The organizational chart must include the following key personnel positions: Chief of 

Party/Country Director, Monitoring and Evaluation Specialist, and Finance Director. 
Would FAS accept if these positions were unnamed and listed as TBD in the organizational 
chart? 
 

Yes. 
 

37. Page 5 of the NoFO states that each application must include the following sections:1) 
Introduction and Strategic Analysis; 2) Project-level Results Framework(s); 3) Plan of 
Operation and Activities; 4) Sustainability and Lasting Impact; 5) Organizational Capacity 
and Staffing; 6) Budget; 7) Commodity Management; 8) Monitoring and Evaluation and 9) 
Other Details.  However, on page 27, Appendix A - Application Content Checklist for 
Submitting Proposals in FAIS, section 3.  The "Introduction Section" states that the 
Introduction and Strategic Analysis should be uploaded as an attachment.  And that the 
document contains the following sections: - One paragraph summary of proposed project; 
- In-Country Registration Status; - Organizational Capability; - Lasting Impact.  
 
Should the organizational capability and lasting impact section be separate sections, as 
specified on page 5 of the RFA, or should they be included within the "Introduction and 
Strategic Analysis" document, as specified on page 27, Appendix A, section 3 of the RFA? 
 

The organization capacity and lasting impacts sections should be separate sections as 
specified on page 5 of the NoFO.  They should not be included within the Introduction 
and Strategic Analysis document to be uploaded as an attachment. 
 

https://apps.fas.usda.gov/fais/public
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38. Please specify formatting requirements for applications documents (e.g. Times New
Roman, size 11, etc.)

USDA does not specify formatting requirements, but would appreciate a font size of 11–
12 points with roughly one inch margins. 

39. Page 93 of the NoFO includes “references” in the list of required attachments (as part of
13. Generic).  Can USDA please clarify what should be included as references?

References are not required.  If the applicant wishes to include more detailed information
through additional documentation, those additional documents should be referenced
throughout the proposal and attached as a “references” and uploaded and labeled with the
‘Generic’ type.  This includes all other relevant, but not ‘required’, attachments to the
proposal.




